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CORPORATE INFORMATION

N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. CHEN Haining
Dr. MA Chi Kit

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LUK Chi Shing

Mr. YAU Chi Ming

Mr. CHANG Kin Man

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Unit 2002, Floor 20

West Tower, Shun Tak Centre
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Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITES
http://www. TeleEye.com
http://www. TeleEye.com.hk
http://www. TeleEye.hk
http://www. TeleEye.co.uk
http://www. TeleEye.com.cn
http://www. TeleEye.net.cn
http://www. TeleEye.cn
http://www. TeleEye.com.sg
http://www. TeleEye.sg
http://www. TeleEye.in
http://www. TeleEye.com.bd
http://www. TeleEye.net.bd
http://www. TeleEye.com.lk
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http://www. BT IR .com
http://www. F#ETEIR .cn
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Mr. CHOI Wai Yip

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
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Hong Kong
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Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
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Cayman Islands
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT % #t45

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Immediately after the execution of the sale and purchase agreement
and as at the date of 24 February 2015, the controlling shareholder of
the Company was changed to Fast Upgrade Limited (“Fast Upgrade”)
after it owned aggregate of 8,256,661 ordinary shares of the Company
(the “Shares™). On 8 April 2015, upon the close of unconditional
mandatory cash offer, Fast Upgrade acquired a further of 124,541 Shares,
which increased its shareholding to a total of 8,381,202 Shares, which
constituted approximately 59.49% of the total issued capital of the
Company. Fast Upgrade is an investment holding company incorporated
in British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability.

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

In this financial year, the overall economy showed a steady and better
trend but economic growth rate slowed down. Erosion of demand of
our products are being continuously. Due to unfavorable factors such as
intense competition, the increase of rental expenses, inflation rate and
amortization of research and development cost during the year, the loss

was enlarged.

BUSINESS EXPANSION

Taking advantage of the talents and experiences of the management
team, we are pursuing business diversification, prepared to seize any
market opportunities that may arise in China, in order to give strong
impetus to the continuous development of business. We are conducting
synergy effect in respect of business reorganization and the possibility of

injecting assets and/or acquisition of business into the Group.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Company will solidify and strengthen existing
business, while seeking opportunities to expand into new business with
a view to enhancing recurrent income of the Group and also returns to
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”). On behalf of
the board (the “Board”), I wish to express my sincere gratitude to the
Shareholders and business partners for their continued support, and the
Board, management and all our staff members for their hard work and
dedicated services. Looking ahead, I believe that with your persisting
support and assistance, we can perform to the highest standard which is

the best way to requite your unrelenting supports.

Mr. Chen Haining
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 18 September 2015
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B PR ik i B 3 B

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$28,941,000, representing a decrease of about 23% as
compared with the turnover of about HK$37,513,000 of the preceding
year. Loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2015 amounted to approximately HK$7,843,000, representing an
increase of approximately 20% when compared with last year. Basic loss
per share for the year ended 30 June 2015 was 1.13 HK cents (2014: 0.96
HK cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In this financial year, the overall economy showed a steady and better
trend but economic growth rate slowed down. Erosion of demand of
our products are being continuously. Due to unfavorable factors such as
intense competition, the increase of rental expenses, inflation rate and
amortization of research and development cost during the year, the loss

was enlarged.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Asia

Turnover for Asia (inclusive of Hong Kong, Singapore, Middle East
and other Asian countries) as a whole for the year ended 30 June
2015 decreased by 24% to approximately HK$19,798,000 (2014:
HK$25,916,000). It accounted for 68% (2014: 69%) of the Group’s
turnover. The decrease was mainly contributed by business in Hong Kong

and Middle East region.

Europe

Turnover for Europe for the year ended 30 June 2015 dropped by 11%
to approximately HK$4,960,000 (2014: HK$5,602,000). It accounted
for 17% (2014: 15%) of the Group’s turnover. The decrease was mainly
contributed by business in United Kingdom (“UK”).

Africa

Business in Africa mainly came from South Africa. Turnover for Africa
for this year decreased by 31% to approximately HK$3,708,000 (2014:
HK$5,340,000). It accounted for 13% (2014: 14%) of the Group’s

turnover.

Others

Other geographic segments mainly included the Americas and Australia.
It has contributed to about 2% (2014: 2%) of the Group’s total turnover
this year, which amounted to approximately HK$475,000 (2014:
HK$655,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

During the year, we have launched RX800, GX680 and JN500 series. The
five protection layers incorporated in the TeleEye RX800 and GX680,
which are able to shield off hackers’ attacks via the internet. JN500
allows users to easily upgrade existing analogue systems from standard
definition to high definition without changing the installed coax cables

and equipment.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

On the video surveillance business, we will continue to develop new
product ranges and business channels. In addition, we will actively
seek other favorable and potential business projects opportunities arise
from time to time to achieve long-term business growth, while further
increasing the Group’s turnover, improving profitability, and thus

maximizing the returns of the Shareholders.

DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2015, the Group employed 29 (2014: 40) full time
employees in Hong Kong and 7 (2014: 14) full time employees in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and overseas offices. The Group’s
staff costs, including directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and
retirement benefits schemes contributions amounted to approximately
HK$14,139,000 (2014: HK$16,162,000).

Employees are remunerated in accordance with individual’s responsibility
and performance, which remain competitive with the prevailing market
rates. Other fringe benefits such as medical insurance, retirement benefits
schemes and discretionary bonus are offered to all employees. Share
options are granted at the Directors’ discretion and under the terms and

conditions of share option scheme.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING
RATIO
The Group mainly used its internal resources to finance its operations

during the year.

The Group had bank balances and cash of approximately HK$68,715,000
as at 30 June 2015 (30 June 2014: HK$7,844,000).

The Group’s gearing ratio, as a percentage of bank and other borrowings
and long term debt over total assets, as at 30 June 2015 was 0% (30 June
2014: 0%).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group did not have any borrowings during the year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT
The Group did not enter into any new significant investment during the

year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES
The Group did not make any material acquisition and disposal of

subsidiaries and affiliated companies for the year ended 30 June 2015.

CHARGE ON ASSETS
As at 30 June 2015, the Group did not have any charge on its assets (30
June 2014: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS
Up to the current moment, the Group does not have any other plan for

material investments or capital assets.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND RELATED HEDGES

During the year under review, the Group’s transactions were substantially
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars or British
Pounds. The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes (30 June 2014: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2015, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities (30
June 2014: Nil).

CHARGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
On 26 May 2015, Fast Upgrade entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with Cherry Sky Investments Limited (“Cherry Sky”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0616), an independent third party, in relation to the provision
of loan amount up to HK$70 million for a period of twelve months from
drawdown date. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Fast Upgrade pledged
8,381,202 shares of the Company (the “Charged Shares”), representing
approximately 59.49% of the issued share capital of the Company on
26 May 2015, as security for the Loan Agreement. Fast Upgrade shall
pay interest to Cherry Sky on the loan at the rate of 8% per annum. The
loan is secured by the share charged and personal guarantee of Mr. Chen

Haining.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE
On 8 June 2015, the Company entered into the placing agreement with
Get Nice Securities Limited (“Placing Agent”) in relation to the placing
of new ordinary shares (“Placing Shares”). Pursuant to the placing
agreement, the Company has agreed to place through the Placing Agent,
on a best effort basis, of up to a maximum of 2,650,000 Placing Shares
to independent third parties at the placing price of HK$22.2 per Placing
Share. Upon completion of the placing, the shareholding of Fast Upgrade,
the controlling shareholder, in the then issued share capital of the
Company reduced from 59.49% to approximately 50.07%. The placing
was completed on 24 June 2015. The net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$57.5 million and the Company intended to use such
net proceeds for general working capital. Up to the date of this report,
the net proceeds of approximately HK$6.3 million has been deployed as

general working capital.

CHANGE OF HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company’s head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong has been changed to Unit 2002, Floor 20, West Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, No. 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong with effect
from 18 June 2015.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Share subdivision, change in board lot size and increase in authorised
share capital

On 15 July 2015, the Board proposed (i) that each of the issued and
unissued share of the Company of HK$0.2 each in the share capital of
the Company into fifty (50) subdivided shares of HK$0.004 each (“Share
Subdivision™); and (ii) to change the board lot size for trading from 1,000
existing shares to 10,000 subdivided shares after the Share Subdivision
becoming effective. The relevant ordinary resolution was passed at the
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) held on 13 August 2015 and such
Shares Subdivision and change in board lot size has become effective on
14 August 2015.

On 17 July 2015, the Board proposed to increase the authorised share
capital of the Company from HK$8,000,000 (divided into 40,000,000
Shares) to HK$80,000,000 (divided into 400,000,000 Shares) by the
creation of an additional 360,000,000 Shares, which will rank pari passu
with all existing Shares. The relevant ordinary resolution was also passed
at the EGM held on 13 August 2015 and it has become effective on 14
August 2015.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT  #3 K4\ B fdi/r

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Haining (“Mr. Chen”), aged 51, graduated from the
department of electrical engineering of Chongqing Jianzhu Gongcheng
Institute* (FEFESE TFEFE) (now known as Chongqing University)
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Chen has been appointed
as the Chairman of the board of directors of Greenwell Natural Gas &
Power Company Limited* (#kJf KIRFE A RAF) since 2005. Mr.
Chen is also the general manager and executive director of ShenZhen
Dingyi Investment Company Limited* (ZFEIITI&F—HEGIRAF) .
Therefore, Mr. Chen has substantial experience in investing in projects
such as natural resources and heat generation engineering in the PRC.

Ms. Wu Hongying (“Ms. Wu”), aged 48, obtained a degree in Economic
Management from Sichuan Cadre Correspondence School® (14 J1] 4 & kK
ELBE) . She also completed the CFO Training Seminar in the School
of Continuing Education at Tsinghua University. Further, Ms. Wu has
obtained the International Certification of Executive Management in
Corporate Finance from the American Association for the Certification
of Training Program, and Financial Management Professional Certificate
from the University of Cambridge. She is currently an executive director
of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on
GEM with stock code: 8009). She has previously taken up positions in
sizable corporations such as Rainbow Department Store Co., Ltd and
Shenzhen Municipal Baoneng Investment Group Company Limited. Over
the years, she has served as a financial manager and is experienced in

financial management, corporate operation and capital operation.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit (“Dr. Ma”), aged 47, is a founder of the Group. He has
extensive knowledge on digital signal processing and telecommunications
technologies. He is presently responsible for formulation and
implementation of marketing strategies, product pricing and positioning,

and strategic management of video surveillance business for the Group.

Dr. Ma is a member in the executive committee and a sub-committee

Chairman of The Hong Kong Security Association.

Dr. Ma obtained his bachelor’s degree with first class honours and a PhD
degree in electronic engineering from the City University.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chang Kin Man (“Mr. Chang”), aged 51, is a certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chang obtains a bachelor’s
degree in economics from the University of Hull and a master’s degree in
applied finance from the Macquarie University.

Mr. Chang was an independent non-executive director of China Water
Industry Group Limited (stock code: 1129; a company which shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)) from June 2006 to December 2012.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (“Mr. Luk”), aged 46, graduated from the City
University of Hong Kong with Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. Mr.
Luk is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Mr. Luk joined New Century Group Hong Kong Limited (stock code:
234; a company which shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) in February 1998 as a Chief Accountant and was promoted
to Assistant Financial Controller before he left in April 2003. Between
June 2006 and November 2006, Mr. Luk had been appointed as an
executive director of China Water Industry Group Limited (stock code:
1129; a company which shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange). Mr. Luk has been (i) an executive director of Tai
Shing International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8103) since April
2014; (ii) an independent non-executive director of Dafeng Port Heshun
Technology Company Limited (formerly known as Gamma Logistics
Corporation) (stock code: 8310) since February 2014; (iii) an independent
non-executive director of China Mobile Games and Cultural Investment
Limited (formerly known as Computech Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8081) from December 2011 to August 2015; and (iv) the company
secretary of Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited (formerly known
as China Natural Investment Company Limited) (stock code: 8250) since
January 2012, and the shares of these companies are listed on GEM.

Mr. Yau Chi Ming (“Mr. Yau”), aged 48, has been (i) an independent
non-executive director of Cosmo Lady (China) Holdings Company
Limited which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2298) since June 2014; (ii) an independent non-executive director
of Common Splendor International Health Industry Group Limited
(formerly known as G-Prop (Holdings) Limited) which is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0286) since February
2013; and (iii) the company secretary of Consun Pharmaceutical Group
Limited which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1681) since March 2013. Prior to that, Mr. Yau worked at KPMG,
an international accounting firm, from August 1992 to November 1994
and from May 1995 to October 2012, during which he was promoted to
the position of partner in July 2007.

Mr. Yau became a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in May 2013. Mr. Yau registered as a Certified
Public Accountant (Practising) with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in 2008 and is currently holding this qualification.

Mr. Yau graduated from The University of Hong Kong in December 1992
with a bachelor’s degree in social sciences and he obtained a diploma in
business studies from Hang Seng School of Commerce in Hong Kong in
July 1986.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 15 of
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) Listing Rules (the “Code”)
takes effect from 1 January 2005. Except for the deviations as disclosed
on this report, the Company has complied with the Code by establishing
a formal and transparent procedures to protect and maximise the interests

of Shareholders throughout the year under review.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Company has adopted a code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed they have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities

transactions by Directors adopted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board currently comprises two executive
(“Executive”) Directors and three independent (“Independent”) Non-
Executive Directors. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each
Director are set out on the section headed “Profile of Directors and

Senior Management” of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development of the
Group. It also monitors the financial performance and internal control
of the Group’s business operations. Executive Directors are responsible
for running the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the
Board. The Board delegates day-to-day activities to the management
with department heads responsible for different aspects of the business.
Management is required to present an annual budget and any proposal
for major investments and changes in business strategies for the Board’s

approval.

The Non-Executive Directors serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board meetings.
They are also serving on audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Through their active participation, they provide
their valuable skills, expertise and experience to the Board and the
committees on which they serve so that the management process can be

critically reviewed and controlled.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In compliance with rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-Executive Directors and
at least one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company has
received from each of the Independent Non-Executive Director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Each Independent Non-Executive Director is required to
inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his independence. The Company had expressed the view in
its circular that Independent Non-Executive Director who was eligible
for re-election had met the independence guidelines of the GEM Listing
Rules. In respect of an Independent Non-Executive Director who served
more than nine years, the Company had expressed its view in circular as

regards such Director’s independence.

The list of Directors and their role and function are published on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

As part of the continuous professional development programme,
Directors, Company Secretary and senior management participated in
various briefings, training and seminars as arranged by the Company with
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions, duties and responsibilities

of Directors as well as latest listing rule amendment.

Each Director ensures that he can give sufficient time, commitments and

attention to the affairs of the Company for the year.

The Board is provided with monthly financial summaries which contain
year-to-date key figures of the Group. The monthly financial summaries
give a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s

performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate

activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed regularly.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Company. There were totally fourteen
Board meetings held in the financial year ended 30 June 2015. Such
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through
other electronic means of communications of a majority of Directors.

Details of the attendance of the Board are as follows:

H P (A1)
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Attended

Name of Directors Wk %
Executive Directors AT
Mr. Chen Haining (appointed on 8 April 2015) BR S Se AR O =% — AR N H R AE) 7/14

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (T T ﬂwi&)
Ms. Wu Hongying (appointed on 8 April 2015 and SAL A L (R R — HAEDY A N H AT K

resigned on 4 August 2015) A ZF— AR\ W H EHT) 4/14
Dr. Ma Chi Kit T A 11/14
Prof. Chan Chok Ki (resigned on 8 April 2015) Wf@%?ﬁfx AR — AR A\ H BHT) 7/14

(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (T FEFETT LA #)
Mr. Ho Ka Ho (resigned on 8 April 2015) I R 554 ( }5\4 F— AR A NH BHE) 7/14
Non-Executive Director FPAT g
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat (resigned on 8 April 2015) BRFE B+ O =& — TR0 F /U H B#HT) 4/14
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FEPUA T
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (appointed on 8 April 2015) R A Sk O — & — JAE I N H 24T 5/14
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (appointed on 8 April 2015) A Se A O = F— HAFE M A N HEZEAE) 5/14
Mr. Chang Kin Man (appointed on 8 April 2015) WL RVEAE (R = — HAE DU H N HEZRAT) 1/14
Mr. To Ka Ho (resigned on 8 April 2015) F B2 e O =& — 1AM A J\UH BHT) 3/14
Prof. Siu Wan Chi (resigned on 8 April 2015) WA AR (R & — H AR A\ H BHT) 3/14
Prof. Ching Pak Chung (resigned on 8 April 2015) AR Bz O —F— 14 A N H BHE) 3/14

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and
formulate the overall strategies of the Company, review and monitor the
business and financial performances and discuss the quarterly, half-yearly
and annual results, as well as discuss and decide on other significant
matters. The Company Secretary records the proceedings of each Board
meeting by keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions by the
Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if
any). Draft of Board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comment
and approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are

open for inspection at any reasonable time on request by any Director.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A.2.1. stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

At present, Mr. Chen Haining currently performs these two roles.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership with the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board considers
that the balance of power and authority for the present arrangement will
not be impaired and this structure will enable the Company to make and
implement decision promptly and efficiently. The Group considers that,
at its present size, there is no imminent need to segregate the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company will seek to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors and measurable criteria, including
gender, age, cultural and education background, industry experience,
qualifications, skills, knowledge, and professional ethics. The committee
when considering new appointment will take into account the current
composition of the Board as well as the potential candidates’ background.
All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and the
candidates will be considered against objective criteria of their potential
contributions to the Board and the Company, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in discharge of its duties, the Board is supported by
three Board committees. Each committee has its defined scope of duties
and terms of reference and the committee members are empowered
to make decisions on matters within the terms of reference of each
committee.

(1) Audit Committee
The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
mandatory provisions set out in the Code.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, quarterly
reports and half-yearly report and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board. The audit committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting and internal
control procedures of the Group. The audit committee has three
members comprising the three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Chang Kin Man (Chairman of the audit
committee), Mr. Luk Chi Shing and Mr. Yau Chi Ming.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

ey

Audit Committee (continued) 1)
The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results have been
reviewed by the audit committee. It has also reviewed the
audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015
with management and the Company’s external auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board. The audit committee had
held four meetings during the current financial year. Such meetings
involve the active participation, either in person or through other
electronic means of communications of a majority of Directors.
Individual attendance of each committee member at these meetings

is as follows:

HHIRHG )

HEERZHA(8)
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MRS E —F —TAFEANH =t HIFEEZ &K
LB - WA REF G RN - RAME
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Attended
Name of Directors Wbk 4 %
Non-Executive Director FPAT g
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat (resigned on 8 April 2015) BRRE B+ O —F — H4EDY A H BHT) 2/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors B FEPUAT
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (appointed on 8 April 2015) B G Se AR O — % — AR N H RAE) 2/4
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (appointed on 8 April 2015) AR e O =& — T H N HEZRAE) 2/4
Mr. Chang Kin Man (appointed on 8 April 2015) WM RS A O —F — AR A\ H ERAT) 1/4
Mr. To Ka Ho (resigned on 8 April 2015) FEFE S A O ZF —TAE A /A H BHE) 2/4
Prof. Siu Wan Chi (resigned on 8 April 2015) IR IR R ZF — I A\ H BHE) 2/4
Prof. Ching Pak Chung (resigned on 8 April 2015) FEAA P 2% O —F — LA N H BHE) 2/4

The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all audit committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings,
draft and final versions of audit committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the audit committee for comments,

approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The members of the audit committee are granted the authority to
full and unlimited access to all books and accounts of the Company
and any employees, consultants and advisers they may, from time

to time, wish to consult.

The Company formalised the procedures for reporting possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting, internal control or
other matters into a whistleblowing policy to encourage employees
and related third parties (such as customers and suppliers) who
deal with the Company to raise concerns in confidence about
misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in any matters related to
the Company. Detailed procedures are posted on the website of the

Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
(1) Audit Committee (continued)

The main duties of the audit committee are as follows:

. Reviewing, in draft form, the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and providing

advice and comments thereon to the Board. In this regard:

. members of the committee must liaise with the Board,
senior management and the person appointed as the
Company’s qualified accountant and the committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company’s
external auditors without the presence of the

management; and

. the committee should consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected
in such reports and accounts and must give due
consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s qualified accountant, compliance officer

or auditors.

. Reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting

and internal control procedures.

. Reviewing the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience as well as training programmes of the Group’s

accounting and financial reporting function.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in specific terms
of reference. The terms of reference have been amended to reflect
changes arising from the revised code, which is posted on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

(2

3

Remuneration Committee

According to the Code, the Company has established a
remuneration committee in September 2005 and the primary
duties of the remuneration committee are to formulate and make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration. The
remuneration committee comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luk Chi Shing (Chairman of the
remuneration committee), Mr. Yau Chi Ming and Mr. Chang Kin
Man. It is scheduled to meet at least once a year and the quorum

necessary for the transaction of business is two.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the financial
year under review. The committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of service agreements of the Directors and considers
that the existing terms of the service agreements are fair and

reasonable.

The specific terms of reference of the remuneration committee have
been amended to reflect changes arising from the revised code,
which is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established an nomination committee on 30
March 2012. The primary duties of the nomination committee
are to select and nominate individuals for directorship as well as
making recommendations to the Board on nomination policy. The
nomination committee comprises two Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Luk Chi Shing and Mr. Yau Chi Ming and
one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Chen Haining (Chairman of
the nomination committee). The committee shall meet not less than

once a year and the quorum shall be two members.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee is

posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

HHIRHG )

(2

3
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the performance of external auditors, the audit fee, and any question of
resignation or dismissal. The external auditors’ fee is to be negotiated
with management of the Company, and annually analysed for the
audit committee’s review. The audit committee is also responsible for
reviewing the extent of non-audit services provided by the external

auditors in relation to their independence.

The remuneration paid or payable in respect of services provided by the
external auditors for the year ended 30 June 2015 and 2014 is analysed

as follows:

Annual audit A F A
Non-audit services FE N BUR TS
— interim result review — P ZE AR

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders
and, in particular, use annual general meeting or other general meetings
to communicate with shareholders and encourage their participation
in such meetings. The Company regards the annual general meeting
as an important event in the corporate year and Directors and senior
management make an effort to attend and answer questions from
shareholders about the business and performance. Last year, the Directors
(including the Independent Non-Executive Directors) attended the annual
general meeting and made themselves available for the shareholders’

questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the re-election of individual
Directors. The notice of the meeting, the annual report and the
circular containing information on the proposed resolutions are sent to
shareholders at least twenty clear business days before the meeting. The
voting procedures are according to the Listing Rules requirement. Poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company on the business day following the general meeting.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

The most recent annual general meeting was held on 31 October 2014
at Units 202-203, 2nd Floor, Laford Centre, 838 Lai Chi Kok Road,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. All resolutions put to shareholders were passed
at the 2014 annual general meeting. The forthcoming Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) will be held at Unit 2402, Floor 24, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, No. 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong on Friday, 13 November 2015 at 3:00 p.m.

To promote communication, the Company maintains our website where
the shareholders communication policy is posted. The procedures for
shareholders to put forward proposals at general meeting include a
written notice of proposals being submitted by shareholders, addressed
to the Company Secretary of the Company at our head office. Specific
enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention can be sent in
writing to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office. Other
general enquiries can be directed to the Company through the Company’s

website.

Further, procedures for shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company is posted on our website. For such purpose, the
shareholders must send to the address of our head office a written notice
which identifies the candidate and includes a notice in writing by that
candidate of his/her willingness to be so elected. Detailed procedures are

posted on the website of the Company.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and in presenting the quarterly and
annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders, the
Directors aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the

Company’s position and prospects.

The Directors’ responsibilities in preparing financial statements and the
auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report

on page 30 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted a review of its system of internal control
periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal control system.
The Company convened meetings periodically to discuss financial,
operational and risk management control. The audit committee has
discussed the internal control process with the management of the

Company during the financial year ended 30 June 2015.

The external auditor performs independent statutory audit on the Group’s
financial statements. As part of the audit engagement, the external auditor
also reports to the audit committee any significant deficiencies (if any) in
the Group’s internal control system which might come to their attention

during the course of audit.

A policy on handling and dissemination of inside information was
established, setting out the guiding principles, procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner in such a way that it did not place any person in a
privileged dealing position and allow time for the market to price the

shares of the Company to reflect the latest available information.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group acts in an environmentally responsible and proactive manner.
Recycling and use of eco-friendly materials, plus a series of measures
to save paper and energy, resulted in more efficient use of resources, as

well as reduction of waste.

GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Company develops and maintains competence levels and ethical
behaviour of staff members. These include clear competence criteria for
staff members and strong commitment to staff training and development.
To equip staff members to meet future challenges and professional
requirements, the Company offers a wide range of training and
development programmes in the areas sales, products, operations and

compliance.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Board of Directors of the Company believe that good corporate
governance can safeguard the effective allocation of resources and
safeguard shareholders’ interests. The Company will keep on reviewing
its corporate governance standards on a timely basis and the Board
endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the
required practices and standards including the provisions of the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.

TeleEye Holdings Limited THMRZRAMAF | Annual Report 2015 44

P

AN A EE WA L P AR AT o AR OR A
PERBA MRS o AnmlE WA HEd® > Ua
BAHS 0 N W P B R o R B
B R TR = H R B R AR A ]
L i A B PR AR

G T A% S 36 AR 4 [ 2 BB R SR AT B L 15 E
W o AR B B AR 2 — 800> - HNIS AR il O € 1) 35
K22 B T A 9 A% 0 R v T R R A S I AT AT
K A ER S AR AR BB (WA S )

T o7 19— i B % B O 9 BB Z BUK > B i 4
PRI R Rk R B S P AT DL
i B e g A TS B RSN AR SR O LR
A FIHLAE 5 ST A e T AL ol E kL > (T
RE S WA R I A% 2 FEL

BB

AL 1 LB BR 0 A AT OB MR 2 RETEAT S o AR AR
7530 [ s R o PR R R > T b — R BB A AR
AE VR 2 $i e 11T 5 A 280 8 08 S s g W) o

Hel B I
Ay mL R R AERE B TR BB ) MOBETEAT b 2 X
b o BCELHE HIRT WA 2 B T RE 7 AR K 8 B TR
Al B R R o J A B TR Z AR AR PE R B H K
AN mREZ TG - EA - BE LS 8T
Je g et o

J#

AR rEREGHE > R0 SEER T REA 0 B
T YR R R P SROME i o A 2 DI A A L R R B A A
wf A SEE AR MEFREFE IRIUTTTH
DA DR AT & A B 1) S e > B0 358 T 52 i LA 2
(3R T LT D 2 3 -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT #H €k

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company with its shares
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2015 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 32.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in Note 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 30 June 2015:

(i) The Group’s five largest customers accounted for 31% of the

Group’s total turnover.

(ii) The Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted
for 20% and 58% respectively of the Group’s total purchases (not
including purchases of items which are of capital nature).

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates (within the meaning of the GEM Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange) or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital had any interests in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its shareholders
as at 30 June 2015 comprised share premium, share options reserve and
retained profits in aggregate amounting to approximately HK$67,445,000
(2014: HK$18,380,000) provided that, after distribution, the Company
will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

Annual Report 2015 43

EHREREHE T -REAA=THILFEEZAF
P MRS NI B IS K o

ER =3
RN T Ty — RBCEFER A R > H B i 2 e 2 Al
SEM LT FCRHJES A ] T SE S O A B B
HMEELS -

E S
AL E —F - IFENA =+ HIRFE 2 R
AR 32 B2 AR A i S AL R T 55 3R o

EHANBEIRM IS -

Yok ~ W55 B i
AR B A B 2 W3~ s s 2 B B
TR 5 6 BB R B RE 13 1A

BEA
B BRARS FR AR A B 2 B A S B I O B A B S
WEMEE 2214 -

ik I A
A AN T A S B 2 R O AR B S R R B
234 o

FRE P R
B T TR S AR

() AEHZHAREFIEAREMBEEEL 31% -

(i) ARSI 2 doe R 3k P B A (3 7 0 A A
P A8 PR O LA A 2 IR IE ) 2
20% K 58% e

RIFHEFTA - KHEE - BF BB AL LB
CRIZEM BT AR ) 2 5 28 ) SRR AT FBC SR (8 A A 2%
A AR 5% DA _E 3 ) ML A A 4 [ 2 T AR R T o
AATATHE SR -

AN ) 2 W) 53 Dk il

R E—RAENAZTH > AR A ) H R
At CELTE TR0 Ve 1 - O TS o A % AR B8 3 F1)) A5
I %)67,445,000% JC (= & — M0 4 : 18,380,000 5
J6) > MEAS A RAE 43 IRAE S ZE AT A e T B AT AR AE I
WM B 2 EEE > Al IRAT e

TeleEye Holdings Limited T 5 AR A R 7

21



DIRECTORS’ REPORT #H &t

22

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Haining (appointed on 8 April 2015)

Ms. Wu Hongying (appointed on 8 April 2015 and
resigned on 4 August 2015)

Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Prof. Chan Chok Ki (resigned on 8 April 2015)

Mr. Ho Ka Ho (resigned on 8 April 2015)

Non-Executive Director:
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat (resigned on 8 April 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Luk Chi Shing (appointed on 8 April 2015)
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (appointed on 8 April 2015)
Mr. Chang Kin Man (appointed on 8 April 2015)
Mr. To Ka Ho (resigned on 8 April 2015)

Prof. Siu Wan Chi (resigned on 8 April 2015)
Prof. Ching Pak Chung (resigned on 8 April 2015)

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the forthcoming AGM of the Company and shall be eligible for
re-election at that meeting. In accordance with Article 87 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, Dr. Ma Chi Kit will retire from
office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election. According, all the Directors shall hold office
until the forthcoming AGM of the Company and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Dr. Ma Chi Kit has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of one year commencing from 1 April 2001, which will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by giving
six months’ prior written notice. The other newly appointed Executive
Directors have entered into their respective service agreements with the
Company for an initial term of two years commencing from 8 April 2015,
which will be terminated by either party by giving not less than three
months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Luk Chi Shing and Mr. Yau Chi Ming have entered into their service
agreements with the Company for an initial term of one year commencing
8 April 2015, which will be terminated by either party by giving not less
than one month prior written notice. Mr. Chang Kin Man has entered into
his service agreement with the Company for an initial term of one year
as of 8 April 2015, which will be terminated by either party by giving
not less than one month prior written notice. The term of office of each
Independent Non-Executive Director is the period up to his retirement or
rotation in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service agreement which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS

At 30 June 2015, the interests of the Directors, Chief Executive and their
associates in the shares and share options of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were required pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or which are required pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,

were as follows:

Long and short positions in shares:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each of the Company

8 B BT BON ELUR JBe Ay e Vil JBe HiE 2 2

BEF—HEANAZTH > RBGES K& RG]
([ a8 2 S B A9 1) 56 352 1k - slORECAI ZE MR B i
RLRI) 55 5.46 R ZHE RO A 3 7] BRSSPl 2 B >
E NS X ONC VSIS PR ) PN /AN RN
AT AT A W i B (SRR o5 B B B e 91 ) 5+ TR 2 58
%) Z el BB b AT 2 RERR 0T

P b 0 SR

(a) 72l 4 JBevii £ 0.2 ¥ 0 2 3% 7 Bt

Name of a Director Capacity
EEUA 3 ¥ Sy

Mr. Chen Haining
Bty 2 e

(b) Share options

Name of Directors

w4

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
WA B %

Dr. Ma Chi Kit

Held by controlled corporation (Note I and 2)

B 52 VE O B R AT (B Ak 1 & 2)

Capacity
e g

Beneficial owner (Note 3)

A N (it 3)

Beneficial owner (Note 3 and 4)

B G HaA N (i3 K4)
Mr. Ho Ka Ho Beneficial owner (Note 3)
LPE S/ HaA N (it 3)

Number of Percentage of
issued the issued
ordinary share capital

shares held

of the Company

Fifi Ay A2 B AT
WalBEH JBe A By e
8,381,202 50.07%

(L &S)

(b)  J B A

Number of Number of
share underlying
options held shares
547 Yk I it H BBy
#H #H
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN

SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the Company’s 2003 share option scheme are set out in

Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options

during the year:

Category 1: Directors
BRI HP

Prof. Chan Chok Ki
BRAE R 2%

Dr. Ma Chi Kit
B

Mr. Ho Ka Ho

Total Directors

HHAE

Category 2: Employees
B2 R
Employees

€8

Total employees

& 8 &t

Total (all categories)

CbEE Gl

TeleEye Holdings Limited T MR A 2 7

Date of grant
gHaH

23 June 2010
SE-BENA

23 June 2010
et

23 June 2010
SE-BERA

4 August 2004
ZEREMAENAMEH

23 June 2010
“FFHEAA TR

Annual Report 2015 43

Exercise
price
per share

B AT M4BT
HKS$

T
(Note 4)
(W7t 4)

2.28

3.12

g B L BATHON B BB B i I i 2 A i ()

BN T BT AR B 2 RS RO s A
B R B 5 23 1A »

R ERA L A AR N 2 e SR )

Balance Balance
at 1 July at 30 June
2014 Lapsed Exercised 2015

S during during J#*

ot Sk the year the year ~ —F—H4
tH—H R AR B RAGEE  AA=TH
Z Gtk 5ES )1 i Z itk
114,677 — (114,677) —
114,677 — (114,677) —
114,677 — (114,677) —
344,031 — (344,031) —
5,097 (5,097) — —
38,226 — (38,226) —
43,323 (5,097) (38,226) —
387,354 (5,097) 382,257 —
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
(¢) Interest in a subsidiary company (Note 4)

Name of a Director Capacity

— L PR # g1

Dr. Ma Chi Kit Non-controlling interests (Note 4)
LS HPE R MESS (M7t 4)

Notes:

Q)

(@)

3

(C))

The letter “L” and “S” denotes long position and short position in the

shares respectively.

These shares are registered in the name of Fast Upgrade, which is
wholly owned by Mr. Chen Haining who is deemed to be interested
in all the shares in which Fast Upgrade is interested by virtue of the
SFO.

The share options are granted to the Directors pursuant to the share
option scheme adopted by the Company, details of which are set out

in Note 23 to the financial statements.

The share representing approximately 5% of the issued share capital
of TeleEye Europe Limited held by Dr. Ma Chi Kit.

Save as disclosed above, and other than a nominee share in a subsidiary

held by a director of Signal Communications Limited in trust for the

Group, at 30 June 2015, none of the Directors, the Chief Executive of

the Company nor their associates had any interests or short positions in

any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its

associated corporations.

g B L BATHON B BB B i I i 2 A i ()
(c)  TAWHE A vl ZH2 (Bt 4)

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital of
issued ordinary the subsidiary
shares held company

o8 TP i ) 2 )
HHBYH CHITBATAL

5 5%

(1) TLIKTS IR0 BRI et 2 18 SR Ag -

(2)  ULEEM LA Fast Upgrade 2 £ #8550 - B
B EEEA AE o BURERE IR KON Sk
) > BT B e A AR B A Fast Upgrade A
fi 2 ST B0y vh A R A

(3)  WIBCRE T AR 20 R PR A 2 TR ) i
B2 A BN HOR B AR M R 23 -

4) HEBHELHEA TeleBye Europe Limited &%
ATIRAH) 5% ©

B bSO 4R Je il T BIR B R Al 2 — &4 3
= DUE RETT S AL R A 2 )8 2 AR A By
b R ZFE—HAEANH=ZTH AR FZESR - F
TATELN B B0 A 2 W BN 3l MR AR 2 ] B OHAE:
e R B AT AT Ay~ A Bl P A R % o B A AT
T 2 BCIR AT o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses
or children under the age of eighteen, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the related party transaction disclosed in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at end of the year or at any time during
the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and Share Options”, the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO discloses the below companies as having a notifiable
interest and short position in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2015.

it S U Ay i 2 2 K

SR B HOGR M RE 23 i 2 W R RE R B Ab o R A
A JE AT AT IRF (] > A W]~ BB W) B AT o] B
Ji&§ 2~ ) ML A 22 BELAT ] RE 40 A 2 ) 4% T o ] 2 T
AR ) AT ] A i R 2 B s A O T A A
FldE 2 2Pk - S~ 5 2 AL T
T LA A AR BN TR AT AT AR 2 W R I AT
HEF B AT (A ] % 55 HE A o

HH ARG ZH

WA A 5 R R M T 28 e < B AN 32 5 8)
P 7R A JBE 6 A5 BRSO AR 4 JBE R AT R (] > AR 24 A 4%
G AR AR N R HAE RS R SO AT A S 4
it 2 LG SL AR RS A D R s R AT
(LE P NE

E-J '3

Wl g K 2 AT BN B A7 B i PR 2 W i | —
AT R 2 HERS A s M F—HAEANA=+H > %
AN w) AR 7 e 01 B A 091 ) 25 336 Mk i A7 1B 2
TEBAER M #EE - LT ARRAR R 2B
17 IA B AT T O A 2 WA PR A

Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued ordinary

shares held

share capital of
the Company

Name of the Companies Capacity EL SRR £ ARA W AT

A EL &6 Wl H JBe A 23 e

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited = Held by controlled corporation (Note I and 2) 8,381,202 50.07%

K H LA R A Hi S HE WA B A (Mt 1 K 2) (L &S)

Cherry Sky Held by controlled corporation (Note I and 2) 8,381,202 50.07%
H 32 HE G B A (MRt 1 K 2) (L &S)

Notes: MizE -

(1)  The letter “L” and “S” denotes long position and short position in the shares
respectively.

(2)  Cherry Sky is interested in these shares due to its security interest and is
wholly-owned by Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are reviewed by the remuneration committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in

Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

The Directors believe that none of the Directors nor the management
shareholders of the Company (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had an interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or any other conflicts of interests which any such

person has or may have with the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has three members comprising the three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chang Kin Man (Chairman of the
audit committee), Mr. Luk Chi Shing and Mr. Yau Chi Ming.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s
annual report and financial statements, quarterly reports and half-yearly
report and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board. The
audit committee will also be responsible for reviewing and supervising

the financial reporting and internal control procedures of the Group.

The audit committee has reviewed the draft of this report and has
provided advice and comments thereon. The audit committee held four

meetings during the year ended 30 June 2015.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has three members comprising three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luk Chi Shing
(Chairman of the remuneration committee), Mr. Yau Chi Ming and Mr.
Chang Kin Man.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to formulate
and make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedures for

developing policy on such remuneration.

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the financial year
under review. The committee has considered and reviewed the existing
terms of service agreements of the Directors and considers that the

existing terms of the service agreements are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee has three members comprising two
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr. Luk Chi Shing
and Mr. Yau Chi Ming and one Executive Director, namely, Mr. Chen

Haining (Chairman of the nomination committee).

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to select and
nominate individuals for directorship as well as making recommendations

to the Board on nomination policy.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient

public float under the listing rules within the knowledge of the Directors.
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AUDITORS B i

The accounts for the year ended 30 June 2015 were audited by HLB BE_E—HFANAZTHIEEEZIRE hEf e
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the FT RIS i A R s W A o AT 00 A R e i R A
forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson AER A b o AN AR I T T RO AR O B 4R
Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent B o AN B wT AW SRS T A PR A R A AR
year is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. T A AR 2 AZ B o

On behalf of the Board RH#H G

Mr. Chen Haining Bl 452 S 2

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer LT

Hong Kong, 18 September 2015 H > ZF—-AFILH THAH
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X 15 & B E B A R A F
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TELEEYE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TeleEye
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 32 to 87, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 30
June 2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

¥ 1A St

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
30 June 2015, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Ching Pang
Practising Certificate Number: P05746

Hong Kong, 18 September 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 4% kI A ik %

32

For the year ended 30 June 2015 # % —F— HAF N H =+ H L4

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Research and development expenditure

Loss before taxation
Income tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translating foreign operations
Change in fair value on available-for-
sale investments
Reclassification adjustments for the
cumulative gain included in profit or
loss upon disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Other comprehensive (expense)/income for
the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share

— Basic

— Diluted

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]
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2015 2014
ZR A TE 4R
NOTES HKS$’000 HKS$°000
Bt it T#c T T
7 28,941 37,513
(18,239) (23,071)
10,702 14,442
8 2,496 508
(8,403) (9,912)
(8,153) (7,228)
(4,579) (4,445)
9 (7,937) (6,635)
11 — _
(7,937) (6,635)
(332) (98)
598 647
(2,108) —
(1,842) 549
(9,779) (6,086)
(7,843) (6,548)
94) (87)
(7,937) (6,635)
(9,723) (5,956)
(56) (130)
(9,779) (6,086)
(Restated)
(5 %1)
12

1.13 cents ¥4l

0.96 cents #Alll

1.13 cents #Ail

0.96 cents #Alll




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION &4 M # R #%

At 30 June 2015 A —F—TH4H A =1H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capitalised development costs

Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

FE L ) ¥
W ~ Wm KB
B MAEAAL
AL

i B ¢
ZEass
B AR K B HLAt B WAk
ATHEBR M Bl

i B £ 4
AT R R B HLA A5 3k

i ) ¥

B 7 R B £ 45

YA B fif
A
ik i

AL AR NG 2 R 4
I 422 FBC e i

A2

The consolidated financial statements on pages 32 to 87 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 September 2015

and are signed on its behalf by:

MR. CHEN HAINING B ifj %5 5 4

DIRECTOR # %

NOTES

13
14
16

17
18
19

20

22

2015 2014
— —F—m4E
HKS$°000 HKS$000
T#x TT

353 252

2,119 3,077

— 6,948

2,472 10,277

5,289 9,415

3,700 4,220
68,715 7,844
77,704 21,479
1,908 2,435
75,796 19,044
78,268 29,321
3,348 2,741
75,415 27,019
78,763 29,760
(495) (439)
78,268 29,321

EBRNEGTHZHGEAUBHMERBEREGN T —HF
JUH /N B %% e I HETIED > 3 R T 51 AR

FERE

DR. MA CHI KIT & &8+

Annual Report 2015 4
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION W #RHL%E

At 30 June 2015 A —F—TH4H A =1H

2015 2014
ZR A Ry
NOTES HKS$’000 HKS$’000
kA T#x T 7T
Non-current asset e Y

Investments in subsidiaries TR B N 7] 2 & 15 10 10
Current assets B E

Prepayments and deposits FEAT A 575 64

Amounts due from subsidiaries R VA i BB A ) K TE 21 8,828 19,802

Bank balances SRAT &5 R 61,967 2,045

71,370 21,911
Current liabilities i B £ 4%

Accruals A2 A 587 800
Net current assets U e B 70,783 21,111
Total assets less current liabilities OB A MR B A 70,793 21,121
Capital and reserves W AN B ik i

Share capital A 22 3,348 2,741

Reserves Bt 25 67,445 18,380
Total equity HUBERE 70,793 21,121

MR. CHEN HAINING B %56 24 DR. MA CHI KIT ¥ &84
DIRECTOR #%# DIRECTOR #%#

34 TeleEye Holdings Limited THRZRARAF | Annual Report 2015 44



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  #AHids sk

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #{ % —F—H4F N H =+ H LR

At 1 Tuly 2013
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (expense)/
income for the year
Exchange differences arising on
translating foreign operations
Change in fair value on available-
for-sale investments

Total comprehensive (expense)/
income for the year

Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise
of share options

At 30 June 2014
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive (expense)/

income for the year

Exchange differences arising on
translating foreign operations

Change in fair value on available-
for-sale investments

Reclassification adjustments for
the cumulative gain included
in profit or loss upon
disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Total comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise
of share options

Issue of ordinary shares by way of
placing

At 30 June 2015

Note:

e SRt i

REEER

REEMAE ) /i
BRESAER RAT

EEZERER
ki ER LT RS

REERE L)/ E4E

frFRR g N

RoF-BERA=TH
it
FEERMAR L) /0
BRESAER  RAT
EEZERER
ki ER LT ERS
HET i E SR
REZZihafitz
EiRRE

i

Pass

FERRH AR

friERR g rsan

ERRERTEER

REZ-THAA= T

Attributable to owners of the Company

WA AHER AR

[nvestment Share Non-

Share Share  Translation  revaluation options Special  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
Tk RPN EREE  RYEWGE  BRERE  MRE R gt kiR it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
7T Titn T#r Titn T#r Tin Tz Tin Tz Tin

(Note)
(i)
2713 26521 (199) §63 985 14990 (10477) 35,39 (309) 35,087
= = = = = = (6,948) (6,548) (87 (6,635)
- - () - - - - (55) ) (%
- - - 647 - - - 647 - 047
— - (55) 647 — — - 592 (43) 549
- - (55) 647 - - (6,548) (5,956) (130) (6,080)
I 29 - - - - - 30 - 30
241 26813 (254) 1,510 985 14990 (17,029) 29,760 (439) 9301
= = = = = = (7.843) (7843) (94) (7937)
- - (370) - - - - (370) 38 (332)
- - - 598 - - - 598 - 598
- - - (2,108) - - - (2,108) - (2,108)
— - (370) (1510) — — - (1880) 38 (1842)
- - (370) (1,510) - - (7.843) (9723) (56) (9,719
n 2,101 - - (%85) - - 1,193 - 1,193
530 57,003 = = = = = 31533 = 51533
3348 85917 (624) - - 14990 (24,808) 78,763 (495) 78,208
Wit -

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the aggregate

of the nominal value of share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a

group reorganisation in April 2001 and the nominal value of the share capital

issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition.

AR 22 R ARG T AR ARSI = R — 4R I ] AT AR
AELIKE DA A 2 R 2 W) 5 R 2 JBOAS T B B A 24 Rl 34T BEAS
Y2 WS AR 2 THT (BT 5 2 2298 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HA Bk

36

For the year ended 30 June 2015 # % —F— HAF N H =+ H L4

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of capitalised development costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Reversal of allowance)/Allowance for obsolete stocks
Write down of inventories
Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Dividend income from listed equity securities
Cumulative gain reclassified from equity to profit or
loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments
Interest income from bank deposits
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Operating cash flows before movements in working
capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations

Interest received
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividend income received

Increase in capitalised development costs

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale investments

NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares

NET CASH GENERATED FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE
YEAR,
represented by bank balances and cash
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2015 2014
2 K ZE YA
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T F T
(7,937) (6,635)
1,579 1,096
112 248
(387) 352
960 150
(26) (68)
(195) (471)
(2,108) —
0] (1)
(259) 23
(8,262) (5,306)
3,553 907
546 237
(527 (2,020)
(4,690) (6,182)
1 1
(4,689) (6,181)
195 471
(621) (1,193)
(221) (138)
260 —
7,546 —
7,159 (860)
58,726 320
58,726 320
61,196 (6,721)
7,844 14,692
(325) (127)
68,715 7,844




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

kA 0 R e M

For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Its ultimate holding company is Fast Upgrade, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the

annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 15.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the

Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-

2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-

2013 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

kA 0 R e M

For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKEFRS 9

HKERS 14
HKEFRS 15

or after 1 January 2016

38 TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

Disclosure Initiative'

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation'

Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-
2014 Cycle!

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture!

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations'

Financial Instruments*

Regulatory Deferral Accounts?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

kA 0 R e M

For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 specifies how and when the Group will recognise
revenue as well as requiring the Group to provide users of financial
statements with more informative and relevant disclosures. The
standard provides a single, principles based five-step model to be
applied to all contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised in accordance with the core principle by identifying
the contract(s) with a customer, identifying the performance
obligations in the contract, determining the transaction price,
allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract and recognising revenue when (or as) the performance
obligation is satisfied. HKFRS 15 also includes a cohesive set of
disclosure requirements that would result in providing users of
financial statements with comprehensive information about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows

arising from the contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 July 2017 and the
Directors are in the process of assessing the impact of HKFRS 15

to the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption
that the revenue is not appropriate basis for amortisation of an
intangible asset. This presumption can only be rebutted in the

following two limited circumstances:

(a) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of

revenue; or

(b) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and consumption
of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are highly

correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. The Directors are in the process
of assessing the impact of HKAS 38 (Amendments) to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 # % —ZF—HF /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2

or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

kA 0 R e M

For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

c has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,

rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following

conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks

and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective

control over the goods sold;

c the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the

transaction can be measured reliably.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense

in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assets under construction for future productive use,
which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign

currency borrowings;

. exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to

hedge certain foreign currency risks; and
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

C exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from

equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation

reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company

are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in

profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 1 July 2005

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received is
determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to

share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to

profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred

to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees before 1 July 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the value of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital
at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded as
share premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their

exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the

business combination.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible

assets below).

Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and
development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been

demonstrated:

. the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so

that it will be available for use or sale;

c the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

c the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. how the intangible asset will generate probable future

economic benefits;
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and

development expenditure (continued)

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

. the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to

the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as

intangible assets acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable

and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually,

and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets (continued)
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs

necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of

the time value of money is material).
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-maturity investments, available-for-
sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets
at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised in profit or
loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or

loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on

financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest

would be immaterial.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest

and principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of one month, observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. In respect
of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring after

the recognition of the impairment loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an

effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for

the proceeds received.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the

basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

®

(i1)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence

over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The critical accounting judgement and key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis at the
end of the reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items especially technology solution system
identified that are of minimal resale value due to technological
changes. The management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventory based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting

period and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Estimated impairment of capitalised development costs
Determining whether capitalised development costs is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount determined by
the value in use of the capitalised development costs. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the capitalised development costs and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The
Group carries out an impairment review assessment on a product-
by-product basis in respect of the capitalised development costs at
the end of the reporting period and no impairment is made for the
years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014.

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer. If the financial conditions
of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances

may be required.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
Loans and receivables:

— Trade and other receivables

— Bank balances and cash

Available-for-sale investments

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost:

— Trade and other payables

Financial assets

Loans and receivables:

— Deposits

— Amounts due from subsidiaries

— Bank balances

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost:

— Accruals

5. &RTH
(@) EBTHAHE
The Group
A
2015 2014
R —HAE TPy 4R
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T-#C F T
2
B S B
— JRE AR 3k e L At R Wik 3,198 3,276
— SRATHE B B 4 68,715 7,844
71,913 11,120
it B E — 6,948
A6
S LA
— JREASF IR K e At JE A5} 3k 1,773 2,363
The Company
AR
2015 2014
—R—HAE — R — Y 4E
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T#C T T
SR
B YK
— i 494 -
— JREMAC S s 8,828 19,802
— SRATHE R 61,967 2,045
71,289 21,847
2R
HEG A -
— 5HEEH 587 800
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. &R

60

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-

for-sale investments, trade and other receivables, bank

balances and cash and trade and other payables. Details of

these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The risks associated with these financial instruments include

market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price

risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how

to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management

manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

()

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 50% (2014: 63%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entity making
the sale, whilst almost 45% (2014: 43%) of costs are

denominated in the group entity’s functional currencies.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

(b)

SV 75 e e A L D R e SR

A EE AR TR AR 4R
B~ SR A L A K~ BRAT A5 R
e84 o DA HR A K At B A 3K
A B % 55 T B 22 REE R A B T
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IR ~ 5 E R LR E &R o A
I 2 5% 2 R B 2 ORISR R 3L -
G B Qe B K e A e M > DA R 7E 8
B R A RO B AT S8 AR o
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7 £ B 25 M B 2 W) DASN AT
J QR N SN TR P o N
45 [0 8 5 AR AU 50% (& — [0 4 ¢
63%) 2 AME i 85 2 AR EHHE 2
e B M LAS 2 B SIME > T4
45% (—F —04E © 43%) Z LA DA
AL E 2 R B SE -

A W AR LASN R Ty B
ZEEHEEREWEARZRE

the reporting date are as follows: BT :
Liabilities Assets
£t ¥i
2015 2014 2015 2014
- S X ZE Y4 —Z—TAE e S 1 =
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
T#x T T# T
GBP i 298 401 1,337 1,301
RMB N e 16 963 94 1,042

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the Directors continuously
monitor foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.
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S.

(b)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. &R
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) W5 Rl e 4 B R e R (751
(continued)
Market risk (continued) 17 45 b B (4T
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) B ()
Sensitivity analysis R 47
The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of 7 £ 1B v 8 I N R B

fluctuations in GBP and RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% (2014: 5%) increase and decrease in Hong Kong
dollars against the relevant foreign currencies. 5%
(2014: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchanges
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currencies denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2014: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease in
loss where Hong Kong dollars weaken 5% (2014: 5%)
against the relevant currencies. For a 5% (2014: 5%)
strengthening of Hong Kong dollars against the relevant
currencies, there would be an equal and opposite impact

on the loss, and the balances below would be negative.

Impact of GBP

P Z X

2R R A 4R 1) 35 oo A 3 A BR
Hh W 2 TE R AE B 5% (& — Y
A 59%) IR 2 BURRE o 5% (=
T —PUAE @ 5%) J5 A3 32 2 4 A
N B RE R A1 e S5 IR I £7 ) 22 ek
JE o NI £ 4 BTG A1 R B2 B ]
AR5 ) 2 WEAG o R EE A BT LA
PLANIES By B 2 RABR B W TH B
S o 4 A SR A R IR A e e 4
B 5% (& —M4FE © 5%) 1M H B2
P - NHNEBMERFER B A
B 1 5 5% (T — U 4E ¢ 5%)
IR s R0 D o s O AH B B &
T 5% (. F— P04 @ 5%) K > %
I 15 2 5 4 4 R AR R HE SR R >
1T 51 45 ik 7 o

Impact of RMB

PP 2 5B A Rl 2 5 8
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZRB AR e S U1 EES ZR 1A T4
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’°000 HK$000
T Tt T T T T
Profit or loss F1 B s 18 52 45 4 4
(ii)  Interest rate risk (ii)  FIFE S

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The Directors
consider the Group’s exposure of bank balances to
interest rate risk is not significant as fluctuation of
savings interest rates on bank balance is minimal. The
Group currently does not have a policy on hedges
of interest rate risk. However, the Directors monitor
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)  Other price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio
of investments with different risks. In addition, the
Directors monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.

At 30 June 2014, if the prices of the respective equity
investments had been 5% higher/lower, investment
revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$347,000 as a result of the changes

in fair value of available-for-sale investments.

Credit risk

At 30 June 2015, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

The Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical

areas.

Annual Report 2015 43

5.

4ih T H (4)
(b) W5 Rl e 4 B H R e R (#5)
17 53 8, B (%)

(iii)  EA1ERE A
7 A [ R 33 s L T A i R A T
J TR 4 HE 4 (A% SR o A5 B A o
TR 25 5L 2 P A A L R
W AN > B B AR AEAS R B IR
e B IR 2 e  E B

TR A
AT UK BE 2 A TS AR SR A i A
2 e A A% S o T A

AR —TENH =T H o fi i B
JERER B AR LT T 5% -
P 452 65 oAk A7 TR AT At o 4R
SN =R T R ]
347,000 #5 JG °

VL

BoE-REANA=ZTH > AEEE
ST R REIEAT R B SR 52
WA B AR R 2 B R AR a2k B 56 B s
AR L 2 B 25 K A e R e O R
T {E -

oy i AR R B - AR 2
CifRHEA  ARMERERE - F8
A% B H A B AR > DUARE IR BR B
A7 Bl el 2 0 o bAoA R
it A A A58 ) B 5 R 2 T i e
S DURE R AN AT i (o < HRE D 4
ZWIEREHE - BT S - HHR L > AL
I 2 A5 L B 2R 2 D>

B E & 2 5 R Aa R JARZS
7 BB R B REES TRES
APAR 2 BT o

7 4 o] Sl A e L At B R T 46 P 2 A5
JE\Bg o BEWCAR AR ELIE R 2K
Vadii AR E & T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

kA 0 R e M

For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

S.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
The maturity dates for financial liabilities are based on the

agreed repayment dates.

5. &R
(b) W5 Rl e 4 B R e R (751

) B 2

e B B B Jm B Ty T > AR AR B A
B MR — kP 2 Bl RBLEEHY -
T 5% 7K - 775 5 B A0 5 2 DA 3 ) A 4 T
S5 B N AT R ) 2 R o

TR AL ] S AR F R AR 2 R
BRG A o AR R Ty AEZ R
BB B R AR T AR T a% e Al A R
i A SR J Be A0 B AT W ORI 2 e R
HEHA - e aE 20 B 5% i E
A H HRE -

Liquidity tables B E &
THE GROUP A4 1
Carrying
On demand Total amount at
or less than undiscounted the end of the
3 months cash flows reporting period
R ER A B 8L 4 T 8K
i3 A U AR 2 i i
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000
T T T T#oT
2015 e S K2
Non-derivative financial FERT A 4 B 4
liabilities
Trade and other payables JHRE ST M R B S A A R 1,773 1,773 1,773
2014 TR AR
Non-derivative financial FEAT A= 4 Rl B A
liabilities
Trade and other payables JRE A B 2k B At B A% 33k 2,363 2,363 2,363
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % “F—FFRNH =T HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. ZRTHE)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) W5 Rl e 4 B H R e R (#5)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) T & 2R B (AT
Liquidity tables (continued) B B (4H)
THE COMPANY A2
Carrying
On demand Total amount at
or less than undiscounted the end of the
3 months cash flows reporting period
B Rk KBB4 TR A
ik 3MA i LA 2 M i {F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T
2015 ZE T
Non-derivative financial FEART A 4 b £
liabilities
Accruals sHEE A 587 587 587
2014 CFE AR
Non-derivative financial FEATHE 5 il & A
liabilities
Accruals sHEE A 800 800 800
(¢) Fair value measurements of financial instruments (c) T H2ZAVa
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are measured BER L LT il A A 4 4 ik g
at fair value on a recurring basis AL
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair AL [ R A B B AR A S IR 2 A
value at the end of each reporting period. The following FEF R - TREBRAGEZECMERE
table gives information about how the fair values of these OB 18 8 T (G L2 Al (B 4 1l 2 e
financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation Rz AEGE) 2 &F -
technique(s) and inputs used).
Fair value as at 30 June
RAR =T HZ AT Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets 2015 2014 hierarchy and key input
S S K 2 &R APESS AN B A R
HKS$’000 HKS3’000
T# T#IT
Listed equity securities classified N/A 6,948 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
as available-for-sale investments active market
SR AR ER T AWM 55— T 8 T 3 2 R AE
T R
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 and no TRAARGEE B ETE » B —8k B &)
transfer into or out of Level 3 in the current and prior years. [N SRS > 7 5 = AR SR A nl s e o
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6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged

from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and

reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a quarterly basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the Directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new

share issues as well as the issue of new debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was a follows:

Debt (i) fi#5 (i)
Equity (ii) HEZS (ii)
Gearing ratio B AR

(1) Debt is defined as borrowings.
(ii)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold, less returns and allowances to outside customers during the

year.

The Group’s reportable and operating segment have been identified
on the basis of internal management reports prepared in accordance
with accounting policies conform to HKFRSs, that are regularly
reviewed by the Executive Directors, being the chief operating
decision maker of the Group, for the purpose of resource allocation

and assessment of segment performance.

The Executive Directors regularly review revenue and overall
operating results derived from research and development and sales
and marketing of video surveillance systems and consider them as

one single reportable and operating segment.

4 b 4 B
S W B S LS M 7 LB
I t B - - (7 S A
B R 2 T - A
KRR -

4t
-
w

= N

W

\|

S

AW 2 EAR R CIEA L FIHEA N A HE R
(B4 B AT A R ki)

EFGFRAEALMN - MERIEFERZ 5
gr > T R AR AR B A BUE AR 2 M B R
B o ARYRTE 2 R o A SR P S A
FBCRR ~ BRATR I B AT S A R
ARIEHE -

REEWRZ EARRBERMT

2015 2014

e S S —E— Y 4E
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#r Fi#oT
78,763 29,760
—% —%

() AHBIIERMAES -
(i) PG ELAE A T A e R A A o

WA B 3 B8R
WA TR N ESMREF O & B2 SR
W R I AR K % T 2 O o

A B B 2 AT 5 B A U 4 TR B R
ab A > R TR A e T i R B
FRIBORR RN - AT ES (R ER T E R
EPAE) E B > Lo AL & IR AL
HERBAEW -

i EHE M FERRGEER 0T > 8
T T 855 4 Jo T 7 AR 2 Wi B R A AR S I
BB — B — 7] 2R B -
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % “F—FFRNH =T HIEFE

7.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA BB (B)
(CONTINUED)
Geographical information Hib it 6 R
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC and AR 2 AL AU ~ I S TR
UK.
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers H ALK B INREF WA Z BRI EF
is presented based on the geographical location of customers. Fr I 25 o A B AL B IR s B T i E
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented BT fEH 2 5] -

based on the geographical location of the assets.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
oK H B AP 2B F U ) ¢ e
2015 2014 2015 2014
- S K —F -l T4 ZR— YA
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T T# T#IT
Asia CHRY 19,798 25,916 2,419 3,257
Europe BRI 4,960 5,602 53 72
Africa ER 3,708 5,340 — —
Others HoAth 475 655 — —
28,941 37,513 2,472 3,329
Note: Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale investments. BitaE - FE B I N AL AE R AR -
Information about major customers FREEERZEN
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing AR IR A5 A 4 RS 6 080 10% 2 &P IR A
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows: m
2015 2014
“R T4 —E P4
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x T T
Customer A EF A 3,055 4,620
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8. OTHER INCOME

Other income is analysed as follows:

Cumulative gain reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal of available-for-
sale investments

Dividend income from listed equity securities

Interest income from bank deposits

Others

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Staff salaries and other benefits
(including directors’ remuneration)
Retirement benefits schemes contributions

Total staff costs
Less: Amount capitalised as development costs

Amortisation of capitalised development costs
(included in research and development
expenditure)

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful
debts

(Reversal of allowance)/Allowance for
obsolete stocks (included in cost of sales)

Write down of inventories

(included in cost of sales)

8. HAfbWA
2015 2014
—R—THAE —E— Y 4E
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T-#C T or
HAbUg A Z 0k
HH B ] At H B R I p A 2R T
SEERGZ Bt
2,108 —
b T g MR O 2 B IR A 195 471
SRATAE M Bl A 1 1
HoAthy 192 36
2,496 508
9. BRBLWIEH
2015 2014
R —HAE —E— YA
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T# T oT
FRBLRT RS E R, (FEA) ¢
B T34 K H At
(IS E M 4) 13,528 15,531
AR ARAE A FHE AL 3k 611 631
488 T A 14,139 16,162
W BN B VR R AR 2 IE (621) (1,193)
13,518 14,969
B AR B AR b 2 kS
(EFIAWFIE 8 R
1,579 1,096
BT 4 346 341
Y -~ W K 2 s 112 248
WEYE - B R
(Wetz) T E (259) 23
BE S48 (Ui 35 ) 748 115 (476)
SR SR 49 [m]
(26) (68)
LT (B ) A
(LB A B B A ) (387) 352
(LB A B B A ) 960 150
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 # % —ZF—HF /N H =+ H L4 E

10.

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2014: eight)

Directors were as follows:

2015

Executive Directors
Mr. Chen Haining

(Chief Executive)(note (i))
Ms. Wu Hongying (note (ii))
Prof. Chan Chok Ki

(note (iii))
Dr. Ma Chi Kit
Mr. Ho Ka Ho (note (iv))
Dr. Chan Cheung Fat

(note (iv))

Independent Non-Executive
Directors
Mr. Luk Chi Shing (note (v))
Mr. Yau Chi Ming (note (v))
Mr. Chang Kin Man (note (v))
Prof. Siu Wan Chi (note (iv))
Prof. Ching Pak Chung
(note (iv))
Mr. To Ka Ho (note (iv))

W BIATBON B KR B4

EATEUEA A (T P4 - L) EHAS

HZMEmT -

e Sk K 3

Other emoluments

Jefb 3

Salaries and

Contributions

to retirement

Fees other benefits benefit schemes Total
E 93 BRI
g oAb ) il % Bt
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T FH#L THL T
BT g
B 2 e
(FTECH#) (Mt () — — — —
SLAL A+ (A (i) 55 — 3 58
(6
(Bf&E (iii)) — 1,574 15 1,589
B — 762 15 777
RS (H7E (iv) — 702 15 717
BRAE g+
(Kt iv)) — 140 — 140
T r kAT g
e s S A (M A (v)) 28 — — 28
R WSEAE (7 (v) 28 — — 28
W B (AL (v) 28 — — 28
AR B (7L (iv) 45 — — 45
TR %
(Kt iv)) 45 — — 45
5SS (M (iv)) 45 — — 45
274 3,178 48 3,500
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2014

10.

W BRATBON B R H 4 (4

ZE UL
Other emoluments
oAt 4

Contributions to

Salaries and retirement
Fees other benefits  benefit schemes Total
ek B RAR A
4 Fo At A5 7 Ein LR i
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T T T#T T#T T T
Executive Directors HAiTEF
Prof. Chan Chok Ki BRAEHEHT
(Chief Executive) (fTEH %) — 2,294 15 2,309

Dr. Ma Chi Kit B — 1,044 15 1,059

Mr. Ho Ka Ho il KB — 960 15 975

Dr. Chan Cheung Fat PR A — 187 — 187

Independent Non-Executive W IE BT

Directors

Prof. Siu Wan Chi [ BIREE- €33 60 — — 60

Prof. Ching Pak Chung A Hh % 60 — — 60

Mr. To Ka Ho (note (vi)) EZIA (i (vi) 60 — — 60

Mr. Yu Hon To David A A

(note (vii)) (Bt 7E (vii)) 19 — — 19
199 4,485 45 4,729

Notes: MtaE -

(i)  Mr. Chen Haining was appointed as the Director of the Company on () BEsESEAER R —HEMNH N\ HIERTAAR
8 April 2015. He is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his NHEIZER o WINBARN R ZATEAE » EX
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by JT % 5 2 LT <6 £ 358 0 1 A 4T B AR B B AL
him as Chief Executive. Z < o

(i)  Appointed on 8 April 2015 and resigned on 4 August 2015. (i) AT EF A AN HEZRAE R R — AR

JUH I H BT -

(iii)  Prof. Chan Chok Ki was also the Chief Executive of the Company (i) BAEFREBAR A —F— M A\ H BT » I8
prior to his resignation on 8 April 2015 and his emoluments disclosed TN B 2 AT B > bSO i R 2 G
above include those for services rendered by him as the Chief FEAE 2 A7 BUAE R AR S IR 2 T 45 o
Executive.

(iv) Resigned on 8 April 2015. (iv) AT E—AENH NHEHT -

(v)  Appointed on 8 April 2015. (v) AZZE-FAENH/NHERT -

(vi) Appointed on 25 October 2013. (vi) MIZZF—=4F+HZ+HHERT -

(vii) Resigned on 25 October 2013. (vii) MZF—=4F+H 0 HEHE -
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. - BEATBON B KRB W4 (80
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The five highest paid individuals included three (2014: three) R ERFmZ AL i =M (CF

Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The —VU4E =) EE > BAE L SCEA 1S A

emoluments of the remaining two (2014: two) individuals, which FEIE o HERWAL (- —04E - Hif) A LR

fall within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for each of the two BOR-RFER FPESRNH =4 H R mAE

years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014, were as follows: A B A 2 4 A F & 21,000,000 % 0 > w5

HIF

2015 2014

R HAE R

HKS$’000 HKS$°000

T#L T T

Salaries and other benefits ¥4 M H At Az A 962 835
Contributions to retirement benefits AR PRAE A5l kR

schemes 36 31

998 866

During each of the two years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014, no R - AR E—UEARA =41 R

emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors and the five T AR A A T > 4 A [E SN 0 1) 3 = % o7 P

highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining 3¢ e 2N T ST AR SRR AR 27 W 5 | e 55 N

the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, no TS 45 [ 2 48 JBh sl 78 i A4S 45 [ 2 IRF IS B 48

Directors waived any emoluments during the years ended 30 June BB A £ BN AH A o HeAh > MEBE T —HAF

2015 and 2014. L= F—WAEANA =+ HIRFRE - I 9 H)

FEAT AT S -
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11.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No Hong Kong Profits Tax is

provided as there was no assessable profits for both years.

—HEAAETHIEEE

11. P
B v I A5 B0 DA 7 {8 4F B 2 Al 5T SR B R 42
16.5% T8 o B /{7 45 BE 24 0 R SR B s )
ST B8 A0 A S A 45

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before taxation

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax
purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries operating in other
jurisdictions

Others

Tax charge for the year

Biwt i -

A At ) VR e AR 2 BLIH T4 B DA RE 1

Z BB REE -

A8 A i 2 B0 S AT B S 18 A B A A T
g &b 2 BRBIRT R IR IR T
2015 2014
R HAE ZF AR
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x FioT
o Fod T Jes 488 (7,937) (6,635)
A AR BIBLER 16.5%
(ZF—PU4E ¢ 16.5%) 5HHE 2 BiIE (1,310) (1,095)
RA] 0B B S 2 B i 2
12 29
PHH B 2 B 5 2
(568) (51)
i AR it e L e 1 2 o 5 5 2 1,971 1,220
7 HAth 7] 95 HE 6 A6 R 2 ) R
AR 2 B 28
(88) (93)
HoAth a7 (10)
AR 2 BLTE K — —
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12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. HBE#H
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable to A0S A AT N BN B IR AR % e Jes 48 T AR
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: DU BT -
2015 2014
SR T4 e S IiEes
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T Fi#oT
Loss 7 15
Loss for the purpose of basic and F VARFE A R FE A R T 4R 2 S48
diluted loss per share (Loss for the (A A NIEAL A 4F G 18)
year attributable to owners of the
Company) (7,843) (6,548)
000 000
TR T
(Restated)
(FE7)
Number of shares iigre 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary A A R R AR K M s 15 2
shares for the purpose of basic and 58 IS 1)
diluted loss per share 693,850 678,916
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose VTR G S84 R R AR o 4 vl s 8 -2 35 8 S o e~
of basic and diluted loss per share has been adjusted for the Share I Rt = — AR\ A AT 2 R 2
Subdivision in August 2015 (details of the Share Subdivision are AR MR R (I % A0 2 5 18 7 B 58 29(b) B
disclosed in note 29(b)). i) °
The computation of diluted loss per share for both years does not B AT (5 A /A ) B R A9 A S A e s 1R D
assume the exercise of the Company’s share options since their L T AR A B 2 T R v e 4 AR A T (o A
exercise would result in decrease in loss per share. N ) B A HE o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% - BB Kk

Furniture
Leasehold and Office Motor
improvements fixtures equipment vehicle Total
R EE HEREER RS ¥l At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$ 000 HKS$°000
T T#T TH#TT TH#IT T
THE GROUP 7 4
COST L%
At 1 July 2013 R F—=FEEHA—H 485 221 2,067 784 3,557
Exchange adjustments I 5, 77 2 (1) 1 57 — 57
Additions NE — 6 132 — 138
Disposals & (34) ) (143) — (186)
At 30 June 2014 A E—ESH=TH 450 219 2,113 784 3,566
Exchange adjustments 1 5, 8 — (1) (48) — (49)
Additions NE 26 68 127 — 221
Disposals & (30) — (175) (784) (989)
At 30 June 2015 R-ZF—-HEANA=ZTH 446 286 2,017 — 2,749
DEPRECIATION i ts
At 1 July 2013 WoF—=ZFLA—H 462 207 1,845 664 3,178
Exchange adjustments e 5, 3 8 ) 2 50 — 51
Provided for the year ARAEFEFHE 2 6 120 120 248
Eliminated on disposals B I B (13) ) (141) — (163)
At 30 June 2014 o E—NEANAZFH 450 206 1,874 784 3,314
Exchange adjustments I b1, 7 % — (1) (41) — (42)
Provided for the year ARG 1 9 102 — 112
Eliminated on disposals H B REH 8 (30) — (174) (784) (988)
At 30 June 2015 R-ZF-REANHZTH 421 214 1,761 — 2,396
CARRYING AMOUNTS He i 4
At 30 June 2015 R-ZF-REANHZTH 25 72 256 — 353
At 30 June 2014 RZF—NERA=+H — 13 239 — 252

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements

20%-33%% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%-33%%
Motor vehicle 33%%
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THE GROUP
COST

At 1 July 2013
Additions

At 30 June 2014
Additions

At 30 June 2015

AMORTISATION
At 1 July 2013
Provided for the year

At 30 June 2014
Provided for the year

At 30 June 2015

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 30 June 2015

At 30 June 2014

Development costs recognised as an asset are amortised using the

straight-line method over three years from the date it is available

for use.

The Directors reviewed the carrying value of the capitalised
development costs at the end of the reporting period with reference
to the discounted future cash flows from the products developed.

They determined that no impairment loss should be made at 30

June 2015 and 2014.

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R

For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

14. CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT COSTS
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14. BREAEARL

RE-F—HAEAH=1H
3]

W —-=44FtH—H
RAERE R

REF—THAEANA=ZTH

I i fF
RE-F—HEAA=1H

RoF—NENA=1H

Total
st
HK$°000
T

15,268
1,193

16,461
621

17,082

12,288
1,096

13,384
1,579

14,963

2,119

3,077

C RS 2 B 2 SR ARAS - e H AT AR A
AR = AR I ) DA B AR 8 o

HHOZHOHBENZMBIR R SRE
TR B R A S A 8 R R Z IR A - 1%
ERL > RF—HAFERZEZ—NENA =+
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 # % —ZF—HF /N H =+ H L4 E

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. AHWEA A2 8%
The Company
AR
2015 2014
ZR AR —E— Y 4E
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#x T #7T
Unlisted shares, at cost IE BT A > He A 10 10
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the Pk & I R N/ i s 5 R/ = -
reporting period are as follows: T

Place of
incorporation/
registration Paid up and issued/
and operation registered capital
Nt ML/ BRREES/ Proportion of ownership inerest held by the Company  pripcipal activities
B A 7 RERIBY A MR A b B R FELH
Directly Directly Indirectly Indirectly
Hifk H# ik FE3
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-RE CENE CF-nf CERIE
% % % %
Signal Communications Holdings BVI HK$15,000,000 100 100 - —  Investment holding
Limited SRELHE 15,000,000 #7¢ BEER
TeleEye Corporation (Formerly BVI USs1 100 — — 100 Tnvestment holding
known as SiCOM Japan RRELHE ES LA
Limited)
(Hi % SiCOM Japan
Limited)
Green Gas Energy Limited BVI US$1 100 — — —  Investment holding
HEELTE 1 %7 g e
TeleEye Health Care Limited BVI USS1 100 = — —  Investment holding
TRRERERARAR REELRS 1 ¥ BB
Signal Communications Limited Hong Kong HKS$1,000 — = 100 100 Research and development and sales
THRBHEAHRAR ik 1,000 7 and marketing of video surveillance
systems
HEEERGZHERAER
HERTG R
TeleEye Europe Limited UK GBP100 — — 95 95 Sales and marketing of video surveillance
BH 100 585 systems
HBEERG HERHHRR
TRIREMRHE (FH) HRAR PRC US$130,000 — = 100 100 Production, sales and marketing of video
(Note) (Hfz#) il 130,000 £ 7t surveillance systems
BRERAG R - BERTGHE
Note: The subsidiary is registered in the form of a wholly foreign owned Bt - ZWB AT AN TR -
enterprise.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 # £ ~“F—HF /A =1+ H ILFJE

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of excessive

length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

i L T HE 2V RE 2R

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong

At the end of the reporting period, all available-for-sale investments
are stated at fair value. Fair values of those investments have been

determined by reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

17. INVENTORIES

15. RS 2 A 2 B ()
RS E B BAREEEENEEZARNF
Z W~ T o HB)H At M 2 W 2 R T AR
HUR IR -

P A% A JBE A 45 R B AR A JBE A A Ry ] A0 - AR 0 B
J& A BT AT 2 B R S -

16. WAt EE

The Group
AR M
2015 2014
gk N
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T T
— 6,948

TR AR > B A AT BRI LA E S
B o ZEHE LN HE)IZ B RTTSG Tl
B EEE

TeleEye Holdings Limited T HR#E A R

Raw materials JE R

Finished goods B
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17. #8
The Group
A4
2015 2014
e —
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
TH#L T
2,370 5,187
2,919 4,228
5,289 9,415
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 # % ~ZF—HHEAH =+ HILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. MO 5k B 2L R Bk
The Group
A AR
2015 2014
- —R— 4
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#x T T
Trade receivables JE WA B 2,266 2,826
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful i R
debts (140) (305)
2,126 2,521
Prepayments, deposits and other TEATZRIE ~ 4 B HoAh R R
receivables 1,574 1,699
Total trade and other receivables JFRE W B R % L A R R AL 3,700 4,220
The Group allows an average credit period of one month to certain REEBHAETE S RFRETFH—EAZE
of its trade customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade FEIA o T/ St SR 4 1 5 3 SR 2 B AT 3 H A
receivables (net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) at the end T LT O 2 MESOHR AR (R R SR B ) B
of the reporting period prepared on the basis of payment due date B AT

of sales invoice:

The Group
AHH

2015 2014
it S K 2 T4
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T# L TFi#oT
Current and less than 1 month overdue R HA K a1 HA 20 1 18 H 1,987 2,105
1 to 3 months overdue mHe 1 & 30 H 104 331
More than 3 months overdue i 3 R At 3 1 A 35 85
2,126 20l
Before accepting new customer, the Group assesses the potential RN F F T AEEGTABERF 25
customers’ credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. BEE UAREREFZEEEE - B TEF

Limits attributed to customers are reviewed annually. 2R T AR o
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18.

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$1,255,000 (2014:
HK$1,428,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss,
as the Group considered such balance could be recovered based on
historical experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

Less than 3 months overdue i3 4t 34 A
More than 3 months overdue 760 4 e 4 3 11 H

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

At beginning of the year i)

Reversal of allowance for bad and SRS B 5 g 4 1)
doubtful debts

Amounts written off as uncollectible B 2 30 A (] < B

Exchange adjustments [T 5, i) 2

At end of the year AR

Included in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance
of approximately HK$140,000 (2014: HK$305,000) which were
past due and not recoverable as the debtors are experiencing
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.
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18.

JHE WU I kB G M WOk ()
7L [ 2 JE iR SR 4G R AL G AR IR T E A 2
1,255,000 #5 Jo (— & — PO 4F : 1,428,000 5 JC )
ZAETE > Ty R B > 1 i A AR 4R
MR A 2B > 584 AT DA E] 5% 45 B > hloAs 4k
| A S o [ = M N S 5 7 o 3
FEA AT MK 5 -
O3 U108 AR i VB B ok 2 O
The Group
AL
2015 2014
e S X 4R
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#x T
1,220 1,343
35 85
1,255 1,428
Jp 358 W 485 s 525 )y
The Group
A4
2015 2014
—Z TR —E—U4E
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#x T
305 363
(26) (68)
(131) —
8) 10
140 305

SR 5 HR A A 6 4 I o (L 2 R A IR K R A4 B 40
140,000 5 JC (—ZF—PU4F : 305,000 0) > T
7 A S A N BIE B A A IR T AS R i
[ o 7 42 [ Sl e 5 56 4 B e A AR AT 4R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 Bt

For the year ended 30 June 2015 % “F—FFRNH =T HIEFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 18, MR Ak B Uil M Ok (4
Ageing of impaired trade receivables EACTL T ed 1
The Group
7 5 1
2015 2014
—® gk g
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
More than 3 months overdue 760 4 e 4 3 11 H 140 305
19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 19. SBUTHIBE K BLE
The Group AL
Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term bank deposits SRAT 4 R BB B B A B B R 2 B SR
held by the Group with an original maturity of three months or less. E 7 = AR 5 DA B A 2 A AR AT AR o $RAT
The bank balances carry interest at the prevailing market interest fF 345 0.001% % 0.35% (—F—H4E : 0.001%
rates which range from 0.001% to 0.35% (2014: 0.001% to 0.5%) £0.5%) 2 BATH G FERRGE - i —F—A
per annum. At 30 June 2015, the Group had bank balances and FEARAZTH > REEA ARG B ke Z
cash that were not freely convertible or were subject to exchange 1B 41 BEE % 22 iy [ 2 SRAT A7 3R B B 42 49 73,000 5
controls in the PRC amounting to approximately HK$73,000 (2014: J6 (ZF—JU4E : 37,000 7T) ©
HK$37,000).
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20, A MK B Uil R Aok 3k
The Group
7 4 1
2015 2014
it S K2 —R A
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#7 T
Trade payables JRE ASF R 786 1,015
Accruals and other payables w2 R At B A5 1,122 1,420
Total trade and other payables JRRE AST R 7k o JEL A JE A+ 3k A A 1,908 2,435
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 20.  MEA SRk e G il M A K (48
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of A S TR 40 8 T B 2 B A A5 B A
the reporting period prepared on the basis of payment due date of HE T 38 2 B AT RRAR AR A A
supplier’s invoice:
The Group
AR
2015 2014
SR T4 R4
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#L Fito
Current and less than 1 month overdue R HA K% a1 HA /0 1 18 H 632 804
1 to 3 months overdue mHe 1 &= 3 A 100 136
More than 3 months overdue s 1768 A 3 {1 A 54 75
786 1,015
The normal credit period on purchases of goods is one month. RIS — B A —MmA -
21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 21 MEWBCHY B 2 7k
The Company
V. /A
2015 2014
- —R— U4
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#C Tt oC
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFRE Az T Jo8 2 ) 3B 27,732 30,102
Less: Impairment losses recognised i BRI i 1R (18,904) (10,300)
8,828 19,802
The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are repayable W2 A5 R By AR R FEE B ZE R K A
on demand. & o

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from
subsidiaries because these subsidiaries have been making losses for

years or had deficiency in assets at the end of the reporting period.

Annual Report 2015 43

FH A 5% 56 BB 2 B 2 Bk A5 2 4F i 18 B07 0% 1
R M A R A TR A R D R e

A -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

kA 0 R e M

For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

22. SHARE CAPITAL 22, JBeAR
Number of Shares Share capital
JBc By 4 H JBe AR
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZRB—JAE —E A e Sk i S T A
000 000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
TR T i T# Tt T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.2 BRI {E 0.2 # 70
each 2 E
Authorised: B A
At beginning of the year and  JM4EA] JL 444
at end of the year 40,000 40,000 8,000 8,000
Issued and fully paid: O 8T BRI A
At beginning of the year AR 13,706 13,566 2,741 2,713
Issue of ordinary shares upon 17 {ifi [l R RF 8547
exercise of share options L % (A ()
(note (i) 382 140 77 28
Issue of ordinary shares by PAELE T AT
way of placing (note (ii)) M58 % (AL (i) 2,650 — 530 —
At end of the year TR AR 16,738 13,706 3,348 2,741
Notes: MaE
(i)  During the year ended 30 June 2015, 382,257 share options were () ®WE_F—HENH =T HILFE > 382,257

(ii)

(iii)

exercised at a subscription price of HK$3.12 per share, resulting in
the issue of 382,257 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the Company.

During the year ended 30 June 2014, 140,161 share options were
exercised at a subscription price of HK$2.28 per share, resulting in
the issue of 140,161 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the Company.

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 8 June 2015, the Company
allotted and issued 2,650,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in
the Company at a price of HK$22.2 per share.

All the shares issued by the Company during the years ended 30 June
2015 and 2014 ranked pari passu in all respects with all shares in

issue.

Annual Report 2015 4

(ii)

(iii)

P W B RE L 4% B e 3. 12 98 T 2 R I AE AT 08
1Ml % 47 382,257 I 4 ¢ 1 {EL 0.2 #5 76 2 AR /A
5 o

BE FPENH =+ HIEFRE - 140,161
3 W FREARE B 42019 1 2. 28 WS T 2 R M A T4
1M %5 47 140,161 % 4 B 18 i 0.2 #5 70 2 4 A ]
-4 i o

9% H A —F— H AN H/\H Z 8 ik
AR B FE A B A9y 22.2 Wb T 2 AR S B B M 84T
2,650,000 B4 1B T {BL 0.2 H5 IC 2 A8 4 & 57 % 78
EQ °

AAFRBE - F—HFER_F—UFEARA

=+ B RN BT 2 BT A I LT A 8 AT
JBe A TE BT A5 T T =2 A (7] S A @
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % %

23.

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

—HEAAETHIEEE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the “2003
Option Scheme”)

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 28 October 2003, the 2003
Option Scheme was adopted to recognise and motivate the
contribution of the employees and to provide incentives and help
the Company in retaining its existing employees and recruiting
additional employees for a term of ten years. The Board of the
Company may at its discretion grant options to any employees,
including Executive and Non-Executive Directors, advisers,
consultants, agents, contractors, customers and suppliers of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company. Option may be
granted at a consideration of HK$1 and should be accepted within
5 business days from the date of grant. The option granted is
exercisable upon acceptance of and payment of consideration by
the grantee and have a duration of 10 years from their respective

vesting dates.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted cannot exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on 28 October 2003. No option shall be granted to a
grantee if the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted under the 2003
Option Scheme in any twelve months period up to and including
the date of grant to such grantee would exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company for the time being in issue.

The subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Daily
Quotation Sheet on the date of grant, which must be a trading day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Daily Quotation Sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal value of a share.
Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Board of the
Company may grant options in respect of which the subscription

price is fixed at different price.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 23, JEIBEREGES (4])
Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 October 2003 (the “2003 AT RE=AETH N B RS2 8BRS
Option Scheme”) (continued) (T =22 = AR BB T3] 1) (47)
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TEREESE - F—HEN _F—UENH
options under the 2003 Option Scheme during the years ended 30 = H IEAEEE R AN m AR B = AR R
June 2015 and 2014: AR 2 B S B R
Balance at Balance at Balance at
1 July 30 June 30 June
2013 Exercised 2014 Exercised Lapsed 2015
Exercise # during i during during #
price “F—ZAE the year ~ “Z—J4 the year the year —Z—H4f
Date of grant per share tH—H REER  ARZTH TRAE B W REER  AH=TH
fihHM WA &tk fotk 2 &tk frtk VS, 2Btk
HK$
T
Directors of the Company
AL A ER
Prof. Chan Chok Ki 4 August 2004
BB “EFNENANH 2.8 53,516 (53,516) = — = =
23 June 2010
“Z-FEAAZT=H 3.12 114,677 — 114,677 (114,677) — —
Dr. Ma Chi Kit 4 August 2004
BEGEEL ZEEZMWENATE A 2.8 44,597 (44,597) = — — =
23 June 2010
“Z-FEAAZT=H 3.12 114,677 — 114,677 (114,677) — —
Mr. Ho Ka Ho 4 August 2004
[IEE 3% ZEZAE A H 228 42,048 (42,048) — — — —
23 June 2010
“Z-FEAAZT=H 3.12 114,677 — 114,677 (114,677 — —
484,192 (140,161) 344,031 (344,031) — —
Employees of the Group 4 August 2004
AL IR A ZRFAENH A 228 5,097 - 5,097 — (5,097) =
23 June 2010
“E-FEAAZTEH 3.12 38,226 — 38,226 (38,226) — —
527,515 (140,161) 387,354 (382,257) (5,097) —
Exercisable at the end of the year
R —
Weighted average exercise price
IEF 7 R HK$2.89%7C HKS$2.28i7C HKS$3.11%7T HKS3.12i7C HKS2.28%7T NASEA

At 30 June 2014, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted under the 2003 Option Scheme represents 2.8%
of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the date of exercise is HK$18.9
(2014: HK$3.2).

AT PAENH=1H o B BT AR
REHETT B B % ) B B I 2 Oy 8 B A AR
AR H BT IR 2 2.8% o

WA A AT 2 SRR S > AT H 2
TINHEST- 2 BB 5 18.9 % o0 (" F — U 4E : 3.2
JG) ©

Annual Report 2015 44t | TeleEye Holdings Limited T-H B4 A FR2 7

83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &4 Bt

For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EHEBLH
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets NEN Y AEAAE B R AR EERR 2 E AR
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior JERLTE B 8 N sk E)
years:
Accelerated Capitalised
tax development
depreciation costs Tax losses Total
IR BRAE AL B # Bt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
THEIT THC THr THT
THE GROUP AL
At 1 July 2013 =L H—H 13 491 (504) —
(Credit)/Charge to profit or  JAMEZE (FFA) /F0Ek
loss (12) 17 (5) —
At 30 June 2014 T —ENH =1 H 1 508 (509) —
(Credit)/Charge to profit or 4% (FFA) 40k
loss 16 (158) 142 —
At 30 June 2015 REF—-THEANAZTH 17 350 (367) —
At 30 June 2015, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately WZFE—RAENA=ZTH > A% E ] REHK
HK$34,046,000 (2014: HK$24,751,000) available for offset against i 2R 2 R 2 v A Bl B T s 18140 34,046,000
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect W0 (& —PU4E : 24,751,000 #5 70 ) o A4 4]
of approximately HK$2,224,000 (2014: HK$3,081,000) of such £ 37 BR s 180 T 492,224,000 35 0 (. F — Y
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the 4F 13,081,000 %5 T ) ffE R AR AE B T E E o B
remaining approximately HK$31,822,000 (2014: HK$21,670,000) R BETE T AR A R A Y - WS A ik A B s 4R
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the T 931,822,000 % 76 (=% — U 4E : 21,670,000
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$1,954,000 5 J0 ) e 5 A0 4 B TE K E o i R R B IH i
(2014: HK$2,198,000) that will expire in one to five years. The 5 A1 35 fi5 15 49 1,954,000 45 o6 (= & — Y 4F -
remaining tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. 2,198,000¥7C) > Mt — RILENEH - g7 F

Pt T s 18 FT T e PR A A
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % ~F—H4 /N H =+ H L4 E

25.

26.

RESERVES

The COMPANY

At 1 July 2013

Loss and total
comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of ordinary shares
upon exercise of share
options

At 30 June 2014

Loss and total
comprehensive expense
for the year

Issue of ordinary shares
upon exercise of share
options

Issue of ordinary shares by
way of placing

At 30 June 2015

AR

MR- —=4#tH—H

AAE B ea 18 K A 7
HHEH

AT (o MR ey 47 15 2 i

REFE—EANA=1H
AR BE 18 % AT S
A

AT o 8 P AR B B 1 5 208 B

PAC B 7 AT i B

REF—HAEANA=TH

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

25. flifl
Retained
profits/
Share (Accumulated
Share options losses)
premium reserve PREE AN, Total
JBe B ik A8 Yk B HE ik A5 (Eut i) At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T T#oT THT
26,521 985 1,253 28,759
— — (10,671) (10,671)
292 — — 292
26,813 985 (9,418) 18,380
— — (9,054) (9,054)
2,101 (985) — 1,116
57,003 — — 57,003
85,917 — (18,472) 67,445
26. BRI

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”) registered under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce contributions payable in future

years.

The employees of the subsidiary in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the basic salary of its employees to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit is to make the

specified contribution.

Annual Report 2015 43t

T A i 2 B 2 ) 22 B AR A O ) 8 B B
A0 91 R 2 R 3t R PR R (138 B 4wt
# 1) o AR BB 2 B B AR [ ) B
Rl > fFRUR H — 2B fErE NE B B4 o
RFREE R HE - B ERHERA
25 R4 78 2 B et B 3k - R AR
AR & AR B R R R B R T R AR - A
e QUN PRI E NS E N IR Al

K -

HA ] 2 B ) 2 A B B A BB R AR A R
FZINE > et E BT AR o WA
JE AR AR B R A & 247 T 1 20 e iR AR AR
FwHEE e > DUA R RIS S & o mlitss
BRI > A SR R AR 48 R ik
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 % “F—FFRNH =T HIEFE

26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (CONTINUED) 26. BAHA S (5
In addition to the participation in the above retirement benefit Wi 2 B bl R R AR A 5 810 40 > 7 35 ) 2 K
schemes, the subsidiary in the UK is required to make National N EMR R B BN R B R
Insurance Contributions for certain of its employees in the H 3 8 2 45 T & 1E H National Insurance
UK based on applicable rate in accordance with the relevant Contributions °

government regulations.

The total costs charged to profit or loss of approximately TE 18 25 A 1 B 2 48 A %9 611,000 #: o5 (— %
HK$611,000 (2014: HK$631,000) represents contributions payable —VUAE 631,000 %5 I0) £ AN 48 (8 A @ 514
to these schemes by the Group in respect of current accounting ] 25 5 AT 2 Ak o
period.
27. OPERATING LEASES 27. RERL
The Group
% 3L |
2015 2014
R HAE AR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#C Tt C

Minimum lease payments made under AR A BE N AR YR A B 2
operating leases in respect of premises Z KBTS AT 2 Ik

during the year FH A FH 4= 2,075 1,633
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for AR AR > AR B B0 B A 2E 2 AS AT U 48
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating e RELA T 2 7 AR 2R S A 2 e AR AH 40 FH 48 2 7R A7
leases in respect of premises which fall due as follows: NI H A EIHY

The Group
A4

2015 2014

R TR R

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

T T

Within one year — RN 2,826 613

In the second to fifth years inclusive AR R (H R A EEEN) 1,299 364

4,125 977

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group R TH 4 FH 42 46 A5 4 B 4 DR 0 =5 ) SE R AT

for its office premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of Z A o R Z FHA T2 B B DY A (R — Y

four (2014: three) years and rentals are fixed for an average of four MR AR > WA TR (AR - =
(2014: three) years. 4 ) [ AN o
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28.

29.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Service fee to City University of Hong

Kong (“City University™) 2 s 2

Note: CityU Enterprises Limited (“CityU Enterprises”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of City University, held a 20% interest in Etin City
Limited (“Etin City”), a former substantial shareholder of the
Company. On 9 January 2014, CityU Enterprises disposed of its
entire interest in Etin City. The service fee to City University is
charged at terms mutually agreed by both parties.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management which are the Directors

during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

Je JU3 48 A
fE i 42 A

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and

market trends.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an EGM of the
Company on 13 August 2015, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$8,000,000 divided
into 40,000,000 shares of HK$0.20 each to HK$80,000,000
divided into 400,000,000 shares of HK$0.20 each by creation
of 360,000,000 new shares of HK$0.20 each.

(b) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an EGM of the
Company on 13 August 2015, each of the Company’s issued
and unissued shares of par value of HK$0.20 each were
subdivided into fifty(50) subdivided shares of par value of
HK$0.004 each. The Share Subdivision was effective on 14
August 2015.

28. BEALRY

16 75 5 Aol T R ([ 3o K B2 ) St

The Group
A4
2015 2014
- S T 2 e S 11 =
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
— 14

Bt s SRR A2 PR Al (M3 R A28 1) - Ik K22
2 2 &t E /A 7 #54 Etin City Limited ([ Etin
City]) > A/ 7 2 Fif 3 32 B ) 2 20% RE 26 o
AR —PAE— A JUH o SRR 3 R R
Etin City 2 & #PHti o 7 K82 s #
42 B 77 1 7 2 MG SO

R B2 A
FEEHAR (MEF) RFERNZMET

The Group
7 4 1

2015 2014
e L
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T#T
3,452 4,684
48 45
3,500 4,729

MY R 2 B AR I R B
WG @A R E -

29. H W% AR

(a) MBR-ZF—HFEAAT=HAAFZ
JERAFAI R S 2 HmkRE > &
i 4 3 360,000,000 B #7 B 4 2 J5 =X
AN ] E B AR B 8,000,000 s T (4 £
40,000,000 I & 3 - B 0.20 %5 o0 ) 3 Jn
480,000,000 5 7T (43 2% 400,000,000 B %
fy > FRE0.20%0) -

(b) MWER_F—HENANA T ZHAAFAZ
JBE SR AR Il R R 2 R R
R THI{EL 0.20 5 T 2 A/ ] B 35 AT K R 5
A7 e A A — IR 4 4 L (50) B A i T
{H.0.004 %5 70 2 PR Al L0 A0 HR 4 s —
F—HFE/NA M H AR -
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RESULTS
eS|

Revenue

Profit/(Loss) before taxation

Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
¥ K £

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

TeleEye Holdings Limited 5 IR # B4 FR A 7]

A

BRBLRTALE, (1)
FrARBL (SC i) e

ALE LR, (51H)
oSN LA

EN/NGIE ZEUN
I B 4

2
B CE

i g
e

3
=
i

¢l

Ao FHEA N
JEAL 2 HE 45
4 B 2
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Year ended 30 June
BRENH=1THIL4EE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
SR DR T SRS DR R AR
HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$°000
T F T FitET FitET T#x
45,693 37,425 39,159 37,513 28,941
1,319 (6,744) (5,365) (6,635) (7,937)
(140) 498 13 — —
1,179 (6,246) (5,352) (6,635) (7,937)
1,206 (6,182) (5,268) (6,548) (7,843)
(27) (64) (84) (87) 94)
1,179 (6,246) (5,352) (6,635) (7,937)
At 30 June
RAA=1H

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
SEap SECME CFCSE SFNE CR—hiA
HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000
T F T FitET FitE T T#x
45,240 38,382 39,542 31,756 80,176
(3,967) (4,539) (4,455) (2,435) (1,908)
41,273 33,843 35,087 29,321 78,268
41,450 34,078 35,396 29,760 78,763
(177) (235) (309) (439) (495)
41,273 33,843 35,087 29,321 78,268
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